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Members of the Board of Directors
Toronto Parking Authority

33 Queen Street East

Toronto, Ontario

M5C 1R5
Dear Members of the Board of Directors:

We have substantially completed our audit of the financial statements of Toronto Parking Authority (the
organization or TPA) prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) for the
year ended December 31, 2011. We propose to issue an unqualified report on those financial statements,
pending resolution of outstanding items outlined on page 1. Our draft auditor’s report is included in
Appendix A.

We have issued the accompanying report to assist you in your review of the financial statements. It includes an
update on the status of our work, as well as a discussion on the significant accounting and financial reporting
issues dealt with during the audit process.

We propose to review the key elements of this report at the upcoming meeting and discuss our key findings with
you.

We would like to express our sincere thanks to the management and the staff of the organization who have
assisted us in carrying out our work and we look forward to our meeting on June 19, 2012. Should you have any
questions or concerns prior to the Board meeting, please do not hesitate to contact me in advance.

Yours very truly,

%MW@M LLP

Terri McKinnon
Partner
Audit and Assurance Group

cc: Gwyn Thomas, President
Gerard Daigle, Vice President of Finance and Administration/Chief Financial Officer

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Chartered Accountants
North American Centre, 5700 Yonge Street, Suite 1900, North York, Ontario, Canada M2M 4K7
T: +1 416 218 1500, F: +1 416 218 1499, Direct T: +1 416 228 1922, Direct F: +1 416 814 3220, www.pwc.com/ca

“PwC" refers to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an Ontario limited liability partnership.
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The matters raised in this and other reports that will flow from the audit are only those that have come to our attention arising from or relevant
to our audit that we believe need to be brought to your attention. They are not a comprehensive record of all the matters arising and, in
particular, we cannot be held responsible for reporting all risks in your business or all internal control weaknesses. This report has been prepared
solely for your use and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third party is
accepted, as the report has not been prepared for, and is not intended for, any other purpose. Comments and conclusions should only be taken in
context of the financial statements as a whole as we do not mean to express an opinion on any individual item or accounting estimate.
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Toronto Parking Authority

Year-end report to the Board of Directors

December 31, 2011

1. Executive summary

a. Status of the audit

We have substantially completed our audit of the 2011 financial statements (the financial statements). Our auditor’s
report will be issued once we receive and have completed our audit work on the outstanding items noted below.

This document includes the required communications between an auditor and Board of Directors, as required by
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards (Canadian GAAS).

The following items will need to be completed/received prior to the issuance of our opinion. We will provide an update on
the status of these items at our upcoming meeting.

Outstanding item

Status as at June 19, 2012

statements

i.  Resolution of comments provided by PwC National
Accounting Consulting Services on IFRS financial

is the lessor

ii. Finalization of accounting for finance lease in which TPA

iii. Update of subsequent events

iv. Receipt of signed management representation letter

Directors

v. Approval of the financial statements by the Board of

b. Key issues for discussion

Discussion item

Summary

For further
reference

Summary of
unadjusted items

As a result of our audit, we identified unadjusted items with an
effect of $32,829 overstatement of net income for the year ended
December 31, 2011.

Our audit opinion also covers the December 31, 2010
comparative period.

Unadjusted and adjusted items relating to all periods, including
disclosure exceptions or items not impacting net income can be
found in Section 3.

In our opinion, the financial statements, taken as a whole, are
free of material misstatement.

Section 5

Fraud

No instances of fraud were noted as part of our audit procedures.
We wish to confirm whether the Board of Directors is aware of
any known, suspected or alleged incidents of fraud.

Management
representations

Under Canadian GAAS, we are required to inform you of the
representations we are requesting from management. A copy of
the management representation letter is included in Appendix B.

Appendix B

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP



Toronto Parking Authority Year-end report to the Board of Directors
December 31, 2011

2. Audit administration

a. Your team

Your client service team comprises the following individuals:

Name Role Phone number Email address

Cathy Russell Overall Engagement Leader for 416 815 5291 cathy.russell@ca.pwc.com
City of Toronto

Terri McKinnon Engagement leader 416 228 1922 terri.mckinnon@ca.pwc.com

Rommel Acob Engagement manager 416 228 4097 rommel.v.acob@ca.pwc.com

b. Our audit objectives

As the TPA’s auditor, our primary responsibility is to form and express an opinion on the TPA’s financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2011. The financial statements are prepared by management with the oversight of those
charged with governance. An audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or the Board of its
responsibilities.

We conduct our audit in accordance with Canadian Auditing Standards, which are the same as International Standards on
Auditing.

Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

In addition, we are committed to being a trusted advisor to management and to the Board. Where appropriate, we will

discuss segment standards, provide management our views and insights and also advise management of other services we
feel could be helpful — at all times staying within the realms of our independence rules.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 2



Toronto Parking Authority Year-end report to the Board of Directors
December 31, 2011

3. How we performed the audit

a. Our audit approach

Our audit approach is designed to allow us to execute a quality and efficient audit. We do this by:

i. Gaining an understanding of the TPA — focusing on new developments and key business issues as well as
management’s monitoring of controls and business processes;

ii. Identifying significant audit risks, sharing our perspectives, obtaining your feedback and ensuring our audit is
tailored to these risks;

iii. Using well-reasoned professional judgment, especially, in areas that are subjective or require estimates; and

iv. Leveraging reliance where possible on internal controls and information technology and data systems. Our approach
will, therefore, include a mixture of key controls reliance, substantive analytics and detailed testing.

Our understanding of the TPA also drives our assessment of materiality and the identification of audit risks.

Throughout the audit, we scale our work based on the size of an account balance, its complexity and its impact on the
financial statements. As a result, you will always hear us talking to you about the key issues.

b. Materiality

Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they (individually or in aggregate with other
misstatements) could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users, taken on the basis of the
financial statements.

Judgments about materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances and are affected by the size or nature of a
misstatement, or a combination of both. A common measure for setting materiality at a not-for-profit entity is to use 2%
to 2 % of revenues or expenditures.

Accordingly, we have set our materiality for the audit as follows:

Basis Amount

$

Overall materiality 5% of net income 2,800,000

Unadjusted and adjusted items in excess of this 5% of overall materiality 140,000
amount will be reported to the audit committee

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 3



Toronto Parking Authority Year-end report to the Board of Directors
December 31, 2011

¢. Discussion on fraud risk

Canadian Auditing Standards require us to discuss fraud risk annually with the Board. We understand that part of your
governance role is also to consider the fraud risks facing the TPA and the responses to those risks.

Required discussion: Fraud Through our audit process, we have developed an understanding of your
related processes oversight processes including:
e Presentations by management, including business performance reviews
e Review of related party transactions
e Consideration of tone at the top
e Internal audit

Are there any new processes or changes to the above that we should be aware of?

Required discussion: Fraud We are not aware of any fraud at the current time.

We would like to ask whether you are aware of instances of actual, suspected or
alleged fraud affecting the TPA.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 4



Toronto Parking Authority

Year-end report to the Board of Directors
December 31, 2011

4. Significant audit, accounting and financial
reporting matters

Preparation of the financial statements requires management to select accounting policies, as well as make critical
accounting estimates and disclosures that may involve significant judgment and measurement uncertainty. These matters
can significantly impact the organization’s reported results.

We are responsible for discussing with the Board of Directors our views about the significant qualitative aspects of the
organization’s accounting practices, including accounting policies, the accounting estimates, and financial statement
disclosures in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Our comments and views included in this report should only be taken in the context of the financial statements as a whole

and are not meant to express an opinion on any individual item or accounting estimate. We are sharing our views with you

to facilitate an open dialogue of these matters.

Item

Comments

Completeness of
Revenues for Off-Street
Parking

We noted an audit risk in respect of the off-street parking revenues due to the significant
amount of cash that is collected from these operations. Therefore we tested internal
controls surrounding the cash collections and reconciliations which are performed on a
daily basis. PwC has tested a sample of these reconciliations and ensured they were
complete and accurately recorded in the general ledger.

PwC did not note any exceptions.

Related Party
Transactions

TPA operates 50 parking facilities on a year round basis on properties owned by the City of
Toronto departments and agencies. There are 15 other locations operated during the
summer months on behalf of the Parks and Recreation Department of the City. These
parking facilities are operated under separately negotiated agreements with each City
department or agency. TPA receives compensation in the form of either a share of net
income or on a cost recovery plus a fixed fee basis. Amounts owing from or to the Authority
under these agreements are included within accounts receivable or accounts payable and
accrued liabilities at year end.

We have assessed these transactions with the City of Toronto. No exceptions were noted.
Beginning in 1998, the City and TPA established a 3-year income sharing agreement. This
agreement has been renewed since then, with the most recent renewal effective January 1,
2010 to December 31, 2012. Through the agreement, a base amount plus 75% of TPA's net
income, subject to certain adjustments, is distributed to the City.

PwC also recomputed the City’s share of TPA’s income and noted no exceptions.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP




Toronto Parking Authority

Year-end report to the Board of Directors
December 31, 2011

Item

Comments

TTC Operating
Agreement

TPA has an agreement with the TTC to provide various services including snow removal,
maintenance and repairs etc. TPA tracks the costs incurred on behalf of the TTC in separate
accounts in the general ledger and recovers these costs monthly. At year end, the actual
costs incurred are compared to the recovered amount and TTC is either charged or
reimbursed for the difference. The annual management fee paid to TPA by the TTC is
$127K.

We performed the following procedures:

Receipt of confirmation from TTC to confirm the related party balances
Review management’s year end reconciliation between TPA and TTC

No exceptions were noted in testing performed.
We have proposed an adjustment to reclass the management fee earned from this

arrangement as other income. Management has adjusted the financial statements
accordingly.

Property Taxes

TPA has many lots in Toronto and is required to pay municipal taxes on the properties
(lots) that they own. Municipal assessments for the lots are determined through the
Municipal Property Assessment Corporation and it can take a number of years before final
assessments are completed when a new lot is purchased and the tax billings are provided.

During the year, a decision on the appeal of two properties was received and as a result tax
assessments between 2001 and 2008 were reduced and a refund is expected. We have
reviewed correspondence with the City (through their legal counsel) supporting the
settlement amount of $2.9 million. We recommended management record this separately
as a gain on the financial statements (see section 3), and management agreed to record the
amount as other income.

Subjective estimates /
areas of judgment by
management

We have reviewed management's methodology in arriving at material estimates for
reasonability and consistency.

Finance lease estimates

We noted that management has estimated fair values of land and air rights related to the
long-term ground lease for carpark 58. Management has estimated an initial fair value of
the air rights of $5,200,000. This amount was calculated using a capitalization rate of 10%
on the maximum annual lease payment. We believe that a discounted cash flow for the
years in which discrete information on lease payments is available is a more appropriate
method for estimating fair value; for years after this period, a terminal value can then be
calculated. Under this approach, we have concluded that management’s assessment of fair
value does not result in a material error.

Furthermore, management has not attempted to estimate the air right’s residual value at
the end of the lease, as they have assumed the discounted value is likely to be negligible. We
believe that the residual value is a significant amount; however, the impact on the financial
statements is minimal because of the discounting factor.

The differences arising due to subjective differences in estimates and assumptions are
included in section 5 of this report.

Other estimates

Furthermore, we noted management utilizes estimates to calculate the balance of the
allowance for doubtful accounts and provisions. However, these estimates are not
significant.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP



Toronto Parking Authority

Year-end report to the Board of Directors
December 31, 2011

Item

Comments

Transition to IFRS

Effective January 1, 2011, changes to the Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
provided revised definitions of government controlled organizations. TPA reviewed these
new definitions and determined that it meets the definition of a Government Business
Enterprise (GBE) and is therefore required to adopt International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) effective January 1, 2011 and a transition date of January 1, 2010.

We concur that TPA should be classified as a GBE. Management prepared extensive
working papers and analysis to support the adjustments required under IFRS, as well as the
disclosures necessary. As a result of the transition to IFRS, the disclosures in the financial
statements have increased significantly from the prior year.

We audited management’s adjustments and have assessed whether the financial statements
are prepared in accordance with IFRS and whether disclosures are complete and accurate.
In addition, our technical group has reviewed the financial statements and is satisfied that
the financial statements presented in Appendix A are in accordance with IFRS.

Significant areas of accounting focus included:
e Leases
e Property and equipment
e Related party transactions
e Transition elections and exemptions

Adjustments resulting from the transition to IFRS are detailed in note 6 of the financial
statements. It should be noted that as a result of management’s process in transitioning to
IFRS, there were transactions identified that were incorrectly accounted for in prior years.
Note 25 of the financial statements outlines the background to these adjustments. We have
audited these adjustments and are satisfied that they are appropriate and accurate.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP



Toronto Parking Authority Year-end report to the Board of Directors
December 31, 2011

5. Summary of unadjusted and adjusted items

We have concluded that the financial statements taken as a whole are free of material misstatement and (pending the
completion, to our satisfaction, of the outstanding matters identified in section 1), we are prepared to issue an unqualified
opinion on the financial statements.

Our responsibility is to issue an opinion as to whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

Under Canadian GAAS, we are required to communicate to you the unadjusted items and the effect that they may have on
our opinion and to request that unadjusted items be corrected. As a result of our audit, we identified certain items and
have discussed these with management, and management adjusted the financial statements to reflect certain of these
items. Management has concluded that the remaining unadjusted items, which are summarized in (a) below and
described further in Appendix B, are immaterial individually and in the aggregate.

We are also required to communicate the effects of any unadjusted items that relate to prior periods. We did not identify
any such items.

a. Unadjusted items
Total unadjusted items have a net income effect nil for the year ended December 31, 2011.

The materiality levels for December 31, 2011 were $2,800,000. In addition, in the current year, our opinion also covers
December 31, 2010 and our materiality levels for that date was $1,166,000.

The unadjusted differences are as follows:

Comprehensive Statement of financial position
income
Description Over Assets Liabilities Equity
(under) | (over) under | over (under) | over (under)
stated stated stated stated
$ $ $ $
Differences in calculation of net receivable
amount and estimated fair value and
residual values related to the calculation of
the finance lease receivable
Dr. Retained earnings 1,432,665
Dr. Interest earned 160,879
Cr. Other income (contingent rent) (128,050)
Cr. Finance lease receivable (1,465,494)
Unpaid debt principal of $177,528 was
recorded as accounts payable instead of
current debt payable
Accounts payable 177,528
Current portion of long-term debt (177,528)
Total unadjusted differences 32,829 (1,465,494) nil 1,432,665

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 8



Toronto Parking Authority

Year-end report to the Board of Directors

December 31, 2011

b. Adjusted items

Comprehensive Statement of financial position
income
Description Over Assets Liabilities Equity
(under) | (over) under | over (under) | over (under)
stated stated stated stated
$ $ $ $
Gain from settlement of property taxes
should be recorded as income (versus netted
against expenses)
Municipal property tax expense 2,392,902
Other income (2,392,902)
Management fees for work performed for
the TTC should be classified as revenue and
not netted in expenses
Operating expenses 126,497
Parking revenue (126,497)
Total adjusted differences nil nil nil nil
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 9




Toronto Parking Authority

Year-end report to the Board of Directors
December 31, 2011

6. Other required communications

Canadian GAAS requires that the external auditor communicate certain matters to the Board of Directors that may assist
you in overseeing management’s financial reporting and disclosure process.

Below, we summarize these required communications as they apply to you:

Matter to be communicated

PwC’s response

Management’s representations

Under Canadian GAAS, we are required to inform you of the
representations we are requesting from management. A copy of the
management representation letter is included in Appendix B.

Significant deficiencies in internal control

Canadian GAAS require us to communicate to the Board of
Directors internal control weaknesses identified as part of our audit
that are considered to be significant deficiencies.

A significant deficiency is defined as an internal control deficiency
that we consider merits the attention of the Board of Directors.

We did not note any significant deficiencies; however, we noted a
number of internal control weaknesses included in Section 7.

Other information in documents
containing audited financial information

We will read the annual report once it is available and consider
whether its content or manner and preparation is materially
consistent with the financial statements.

Significant difficulties or disagreements
that occurred during the audit

No difficulties or disagreements occurred while performing our
audit that require the attention of the Board of Directors.

Fraud and illegal acts

No fraud involving senior management, employees with a
significant role in internal control or that would cause a material
misstatement of the financial statements, came to our attention as a
result of our audit procedures.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

10



Toronto Parking Authority

Year-end report to the Board of Directors
December 31, 2011

7. Internal control recommendations

The purpose of our audit was to enable us to express an opinion on the financial statements. The audit included
consideration of internal control relevant to the preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of internal control.

During our audit, we identified the following significant deficiencies and certain other control recommendations that we
have discussed with management and wish to bring to your attention.

Internal control weaknesses

Item noted

Recommendation

Management’s response

We noted that management
reviews exception reports for
payroll, however, there is no
formal sign off as evidence of
review.

We recommend that the reviewer sign
the reports as evidence of his review.

Management agrees with the
recommendation and will formally sign
off on the review.

During our audit of the rent
receivables, it was noted that
balances are not assessed for
collectability.

Although the balances are not material,
we recommend that Finance consult
with the real estate department to
assess collectability.

Collectability of rent receivables are
assessed at least annually and doubtful
amounts are provided for when
justification exists. Management is
hesitant to write off amounts too quickly
as any subsequent pursuit of collection
would cease.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
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Toronto Parking Authority Year-end report to the Board of Directors
December 31, 2011

8. Professional fees

The following is a summary of our fees for 2011 (exclusive of taxes and out-of-pocket expenses).

Service description 2011 2010

$ $
Audit of the financial statements 14,110 14,110
Transition to IFRS 22,750 -
Total services 36,860 14,110

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 22
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Appendix A: Draft financial statements
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DRAFT

Toronto Parking Authority

Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010
(all amounts are in Canadian dollars)
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DRAFT

June 21, 2012

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors of
Toronto Parking Authority

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Toronto Parking Authority; which comprise
the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 and the statements of
comprehensive income, changes in equity'and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2010, and the related notes, which comprise a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting'Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due'to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

FOR DISCUSSION WITH MANAGEMENT ONLY — SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT
NOT TO BE FURTHER COMMUNICATED
G:\TORONTO PARKING AUTHORITY 001-FIN.docx June 20, 2012 5:05 PM



DRAFT

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Toronto Parking Authority as at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2011 and' December 31, 2010 in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Comparative information

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 3 to the financial statements, which describes
that Toronto Parking Authority adopted International Financial Reporting Standards on January 1, 2011,
with a transition date of January 1, 2010. These standards were applied retrospectively by management to
the comparative information in these financial statements, including the statements of financial position
as at December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010, and the statements of comprehensive income; changes in
equity and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2010 and the related disclosures. We were not
engaged to report on the restated comparative information as at January 1, 2010 and, as’such, it is
unaudited.

Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

FOR DISCUSSION WITH MANAGEMENT ONLY — SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT
NOT TO BE FURTHER COMMUNICATED
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Toronto Parking Authority

Statements of Financial Position

DRAFT

(all amounts are in Canadian dollars)

Assets

Current assets

Cash

Investments

Accounts receivable
Finance lease receivable
Supplies

Prepaid expenses

Finance lease receivable
Investment in garage

Property and equipment

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Provisions

Deferred revenue

Due to related parties

Debt payable

Debt payable

Equity

Commitments and contingent liabilities

Note

10
11(b)(ii)

11

21
12

13,21
14,21

14,21

15

23

Approved on Behalf of the Board of Direc

Chairman

December 31, December 31, January 1,
2011 2010 2010
$ $ $
(Unaudited)
21,816,866 27,571,902 18,583,389
58,379,460 60,998,018 69,825,567
1,168,095 1,027,929 1,681,969
648,050 648,050 617,519
330,981 317,644 314,401
567,832 506,167 457,391
82,911,284 91,069,710 91,480,236
6,799,363 6,766,653 6,737,820
6,000,000 6,000,000 -
138,871,877 138,999,920 124,914,573
234,582,524 242,836,283 223,132,629
7,665,994 8,010,080 6,959,797
191,444 866,126 630,344
393,355 470,548 427,533
12,714,501 31,848,424 39,659,945
2,159,868 2,346,722 2,010,000
23,125,162 43,541,900 49,687,619
6,736,335 8,896,204 4,000,000
29,861,497 52,438,104 53,687,619
204,721,027 190,398,179 169,445,010
234,582,524 242,836,283 223,132,629
President

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

FOR DISCUSSION WITH MANAGEMENT ONLY - SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT

NOT TO BE FURTHER COMMUNICATED
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Toronto Parking Authority

Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010

DRAFT

(all amounts are in Canadian dollars)

2011 2010
Note $ $
Parking revenue 16 119,372,811 116,611,538
Direct expenses
Operating 26 37,376,848 35,890,898
Municipal property tax 17,134,987 17,403,675
Finance interest paid on debt 14 167,630 86,738
Amortization of property and equipment 11 7,415,178 7,281,902
62,094,643 60,663,213
Income before administration expense and other
income 57,278,168 55,948,325
Administration expense 7,380,294 7,086,304
Income before other income 49,897,874 48,862,021
Other income
Income earned on financial instruments 18 3,799,226 4,164,645
Other income 18 3,375,050 27,219,946
7,174,276 31,384,591
Comprehensive income for the year 57,072,150 80,246,612

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
FOR DISCUSSION WITH MANAGEMENT ONLY — SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT

NOT TO BE FURTHER COMMUNICATED
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Toronto Parking Authority

Statements of Changes in Equity
For the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010

(all amounts are in Canadian dollars)

2011 2010

Note $ $

Balance - Beginning of year 190,398,179 169,445,010
Comprehensive income for the year 57,072,150 80,246,612
247,470,329 249,691,622

Distribution to City of Toronto 20 (42,749,302) (59,293,443)
Balance - End of year 204,721,027 190,398,179

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

FOR DISCUSSION WITH MANAGEMENT ONLY — SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT
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G:\TORONTO PARKING AUTHORITY 001-FIN.docx June 20, 2012 5:05 PM



Toronto Parking Authority

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010

DRAFT

(all amounts are in Canadian dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities
Comprehensive income for the year
Add (deduct) non-cash items
Amortization of property and equipment
Gain on sale of property and equipment
Net amount - interest/finance income and finance charges
Change in unrealized loss (gain) on held-for-trading financial
assets

Net change in non-cash working capital balances related to
operating activities

Net cash flow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received from held-for-trading financial assets

Interest received on loans and receivables (finance lease
receivable)

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

Purchase of property and equipment

Net cash flow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Net decrease in investments

Distribution to City of Toronto

Long-term debt to finance purchase of property and-equipment
Advances
Repayments
Finance charges paid on long-term. debt

Net cash flow from financing activities
Increase (decrease) in-cash during the\year
Cash - Beginning of year

Cash - End of year

Non-cash transactions

Addition of property and equipment

Debt payable

Investment in garage

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

Note

11

10

24

18
10

11

14

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2011 2010

$ $
57,072,150 80,246,612
7,415,178 7,281,902
(7,178) (25,957,459)
(3,235,092) (4,614,722)
(396,504) 536,816
60,848,554 57,493,149
(20,445,052) (5,880,420)
40,403,502 51,612,729
2,721,961 4,024,577
648,050 617,519
7,181 20,117,533
(7,287,138) (21,527,323)
(3,909,946) 3,232,306
3,015,063 8,290,733
(42,749,302) (59,293,443)
- 7,450,825
(2,346,723) (2,217,899)
(167,630) (86,738)

(42,248,592)

(45,856,522)

(5,755,036)

27,571,902

8,988,513

18,583,389

21,816,866

27,571,902

7,618,088
(7,618,088)
(6,000,000)

6,000,000
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Toronto Parking Authority

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010

(all amounts are in Canadian dollars)
1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements of the Toronto Parking Authority (the Authority) have been prepared on a going
concern basis and without reservation comply with all the requirements of International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS). Previous financial statements were prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) for profit-oriented organizations.

These financial statements were authorized by the Authority’s Board of Directors at their meeting held on
June 19, 2012.

2 Nature of operations and relationship to the City of Toronto

The Authority is a local board of the City of Toronto (the City), established under the City of Toronto Act, 2006
with a mandate to operate, manage and maintain municipal off-street parking facilities and on-street meter
operations on behalf of the City in support of local business areas.Municipal off-street parking facilities are of
two primary types: (a) open-air single level lots without structures referred to as surface lots and; (b) covered,
multi-level structures referred to as parking garages/structures.

The address of its registered office is 33 Queen Street East, Toronto, Ontario.

The City is considered the ultimate controlling entity of the Authority. Invits relationship with the City, the
Authority has an agreement(on income-sharing which is more fully described in note 20.

By virtue of Section 149(1) of the Income Tax Act (Canada), the Authority is not subject to income taxes.
3 Basis of presentation and adoption of IFRS

The Authority is a public sector entity and meets the definition of a Government Business Enterprise (GBE) as
set out in the Introduction to Public Sector Accounting Standards. GBEs are deemed to be publicly accountable
enterprises and for fiscal periods beginning on'January 1, 2011 or later must apply IFRS as set out in Part I of
The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA) Handbook - Accounting.

4 Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the revaluation of
certain financial assets to fair value.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity. Stated in very general terms, a financial asset is cash or a contractual right
to receive cash such as a bond or a trade receivable. Similarly, a financial liability is a contractual obligation to
deliver cash or another financial asset such as a bank loan or a trade payable to another entity.

FOR DISCUSSION WITH MANAGEMENT ONLY — SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT
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Toronto Parking Authority

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010

(all amounts are in Canadian dollars)
. Classification and measurement of financial instruments
The Authority classifies its financial instruments into one of the following categories based on the

Authority’s intended use of the instrument. The Authority’s accounting policy for measurement of each
category is as follows:

Financial instrument Category Subsequent measurement
Cash loans and receivable fair value through profit or loss
Investments held-for-trading fair value through profit or loss
Accounts receivable loans and receivables amortized cost
Finance lease receivable

(including current portion) loans-and receivables amortized cost
Accounts payable and accrued

liabilities other financial liabilities amortized cost
Due to related parties other financial liabilities amortized cost
Debt payable other financial liabilities amortized cost

All financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, which is generally the transaction price.
e Method of determining fair value

Fair value is determined:

o on the basis of quoted pricesin an active market or if an active market does not exist;

o using accepted valuation techniques.or parameters derived from a combination of active markets or
from statistical estimates or other-quantitative methods.

Other categories of financial instruments that are measured subsequently at amortized cost do not trade
on an active market.

For assets measured at fair value, changes in fair value (gains and losses) are recognized in profit or loss as
an unrealized gain orloss.

. Cash

Cash comprises cash-on-hand, deposits held on call with banks and other liquid investments with original
maturities of less than three months.
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Toronto Parking Authority

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010

(all amounts are in Canadian dollars)
o Investments

Investments consist of fixed income securities of governments and high quality corporate bonds carried at
fair value and interest receivable thereon.

Investments have been classified as held-for-trading and measured at fair value based on quoted market
prices, which is considered to be the closing market bid price at the year-end. Investments are recognized
and derecognized on the trade date. Investments are classified as held-for-trading (or fair value through
profit or loss) as they are intended for sale in the short term, are part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and there is a recent pattern of short-term trading to realize gains.
The primary use made by the Authority of held-for-trading financial assets'is to fund capital purchases and
their measurement at fair value provides more relevant information than does amortized cost and is
consistent with the Authority’s approach to evaluation and management of them:

Investment income includes interest, realized and unrealized gains orlosses on investments. Investment
income is classified under profit or loss-and is recorded as other income on the statements of
comprehensive income.

Investments classified as current assets have varying maturity dates with some greater than one year from
the date of the financial statements. However, all are capable.of prompt liquidation and have been
classified as current assets. When investments are not capable of liquidation within one year of the date of
the financial statements, they would be classified as long-term)investments.

Fees for custody and management services are expensed as incurred in the statements of comprehensive
income.

The Authority’s investment policy is to invest onlyin eligible investments as prescribed in the financial
activities regulation of the City of Toronto Act, 2006.

. Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are primarily trade receivables recorded at amortized cost, less a provision for
impairment, which involves annual testing to assess and estimate uncollectible amounts. A provision for
uncollectible amounts is made when objective evidence indicates the Authority may not be able to collect a
receivable. Balances are written off when collection is assessed as remote. Adjustments to the amortized
cost are included in profit or loss. The amortized cost of accounts receivable approximates their fair value
due to their short-term nature.

. Finance lease receivable

Finance lease receivable represents the present value of minimum lease payments due to the Authority as
lessor under a finance lease.
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Toronto Parking Authority

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010

(all amounts are in Canadian dollars)
e Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are primarily trade payables, pension remittances and liabilities to
government for sales and payroll related taxes measured at their amortized cost, which approximates their
fair value due to their short-term nature. Adjustments to the amortized cost are included in profit or loss.

o Impairment of financial assets

As at each statement of financial position date, the Authority assesses whether the assets valued at
amortized cost are impaired. When objective evidence of impairment is available, the impairment is
recognized in the same period by adjusting the value on the statements of financial position and
recognizing an expense in the statements of comprehensive income. When previous impairment losses
reverse, they are recognized up to the extent of the impairment amount originally recognized.

. Derivative financial instruments

The Authority utilizes derivative financial instruments in the management of its purchase of electricity.
The Authority’s policy is not to utilize derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

Derivative contracts entered into by the City.in connection with the purchase of electricity, to which the
Authority is a party, are not designated to be in‘a hedging relationship and are recorded at their fair value
as an asset or a liability’based on quoted market prices or dealer quotes with changes in fair value, if any,
recorded in investment income. As at December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 and January 1, 2010, there
were no contracts outstanding.

Property and equipment and investment property
« Measurement basis - cost model

The Authority has chosen to continue measuring property and equipment using the cost model. The cost
model provides that property and equipment be recorded at their cost at the time of recognition.

Any costs incurred subsequent to initial recognition, which enhance the service capacity (an
improvement), are capitalized as property and equipment and amortized over the remaining useful life of
the asset or the improvement, whichever is shorter.

+ Component accounting

Components of an item of property and equipment that have different useful lives and have a significant
cost in relation to the total cost of the item have been classified and amortized to profit or loss separately.
Parking garage structures are currently the only item of property and equipment identified as having
components with differing useful lives that have significant costs in relation to the cost of the entire item.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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(all amounts are in Canadian dollars)
e Amortization
The amortizable amount is the cost of the asset less any residual value. Amortization expense is recognized

in profit or loss and is calculated from the date the asset is available for use calculated on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Parking garages - concrete structure 25 or 40 years
Surface car parks and other parking garage

components 25 years
Equipment and furnishings 5to 10 years

Projects to build garages or surface car parks, which are’in process, are included in property and
equipment as acquired and are amortized once the asset is placed into service. Improvements to facilities
that meet the recognition criteria are added to the asset and amortized over a period up to 25 years.

Land is not amortized, as it is considered to have an indefinite life.

Assets acquired through a finance lease are classified under property and equipment and amortized
consistent with other similar assets.

The useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and
are estimated by management based on historical analysis and other available information. The residual
values of property and equipment are reviewed at.€ach statement of financial position date and are based
on the assessment-of useful lives and other available information.

When there is-achange in use of property and equipment between use as investment property or for the
Authority’s-principal activity of parking, the asset is transferred to the appropriate classification at its
carrying/amount without recognition of a gain orloss.

. Investment property

When property is held to earn rental income or for capital appreciation rather than for the Authority’s
principal strategic purpose of providing parking, it is classified as investment property.

Some properties owned by the Authority include a portion that is held to earn rental income and another
portion that is held for strategic parking or administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately, they are accounted for separately. If these portions could not be sold separately, the property is
classified as investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for parking or administrative
purposes.

If the utilization of the property for its principal strategic purpose is greater than 10%, the Authority’s
policy is to classify the entire property as property and equipment rather than investment property. There
are no properties classified as investment property as at December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010 or
January 1, 2010.
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Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010

(all amounts are in Canadian dollars)
« Impairment of non-financial assets

Property and equipment are reviewed annually for indications of impairment or when circumstances
indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

If an asset is determined to be impaired it is written down to its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
fair value, less costs to sell and value in use. In the absence of a reliable estimate of fair value for an asset
that is clearly impaired, the value in use may be applied. If thereis an indication that a previously impaired
asset has experienced an increase in fair value or value in use, the previous impairment is reversed but
only to the extent of the carrying amount had no impairments been recognized.

Impairment losses or reversals are recorded in profitor loss.
Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Authority has a present legal or constructive obligation or entitlement as a
result of past events, it is probable that a payment will have to be made/received to settle the
obligation/entitlement and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are measured at management’s

best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period and are
discounted to present value where the effect is material.

Revenue and other income recognition

Revenue is recorded on the accrual basis of accounting: Revenue includes parking fee revenue and other income
from investment, rental and advertising activities. The accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenue as the
service is performed or the income is earned, can be reliably measured and collection is reasonably assured. The
timing of revenue recognition for the Authority’s significant sources of revenue is as follows:

o  parking fee revenue as the'service is performed;

« interest and finance income on a time proportion basis with reference to the principal amount and
effective interest rate;

o  gains or losses when the transaction occurs;
« rental revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease;

o  advertising revenue in accordance with the substance of the agreement, which currently supports
recognition on a straight-line basis over the term; and

o other revenue as the Authority has a legal or constructive right to receive a future economic benefit.

Deferred revenue consists of deposits and payments for monthly permits paid in advance, which are to be
earned and recognized in a future period in accordance with this policy as it relates to parking revenue.
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Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010

(all amounts are in Canadian dollars)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of any discounts or
volume rebates.

Multi-employer pension plan

The Authority makes contributions to Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System (OMERS), which is a
multi-employer plan (the plan), on behalf of substantially all of its employees. The plan is a contributory
defined benefit pension plan funded by equal contributions from participating employers and employees as well
as by investment earnings of the plan. The plan specifies the amount of the retirement benefits to be received by
the employees based on the length of service and rates of pay. The Authority accounts for the plan as a defined
contribution plan.

Contributions received from all OMERS employers are co-mingled-and used to jointly purchase investments to
support the pension obligations. OMERS does not track its investments by employer. In. addition, OMERS
engages an independent actuary to determine the funded status of the-plan with actuarial assumptions
developed based on the entire plan membership, not by employer. Although the plan has defined benefit plan
characteristics, there is insufficient information-available to account for the plan as a defined benefit plan.
Defined benefit plan accounting would require the recording of the discounted amount of the future benefit
obligations offset against the fair value of plan assets.

In this situation International Accounting Standard (IAS19), Employee Benefits, requires that defined
contribution accounting and-disclosure be applied.

On the basis of the most recent reliable information available (generally the OMERS 2011 annual report and
2011 report to members) the plan was in a deficit position of approximately $7.3 billion at the end of 2011, an
increase from $4.5 billionin 2010: OMERS stated that the deficit was due for the most part to losses stemming
from the 2008 global credit crisis, the related stock-market collapse and the ongoing European debt crisis in
2011. OMERS'is funding this deficit through a combination of temporary contribution increases averaging 2.9%
of pensionable earnings, temporary benefit calculation changes and an investment strategy to reduce the Plan’s
exposure to stock markets.

Leases
. Finance leases

Assets leased under arrangements that transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership, with
or without ultimate transfer of title, are classified as finance leases. The Authority is party to finance leases
as both lessor and lessee.

a) When the Authority is a lessor under a finance lease, a finance lease receivable is recorded at the
inception of the lease at an amount equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments plus any unguaranteed residual value.

o Lease payments received are allocated between a reduction of the receivable and finance income
on an amortized basis to produce a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
receivable.
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. Finance income is recorded as other income.

e  When assets are recognized under a finance lease for the first time, there is a concurrent
derecognition of the asset as property and equipment (as if effectively disposed of).

b) When the Authority is a lessee under a finance lease, the accounts involved include an asset and a
future liability capitalized, at the inception of the lease, at an amount equal to the fair value of the
asset or, if lower, the present value of minimum lease payments plus a payment under a bargain
purchase option that, at the inception of the lease, is reasonably certain to be exercised.

o Theleased asset is classified as property and equipment and is-amortized on the same basis as
other assets within the same class.

o Lease payments made are allocated between a reduction to the lease liability and as finance
expense on an amortized basis to produce a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability.

« Finance expense is recorded as a-direct operating expense.

e Operating leases

Assets leased under arrangements that do not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership
are classified as operating leases. The Authority'isparty to operating leases as both lessor and lessee.

a) When the Authority is a lessor under an operating lease, assets are classified within property and
equipment on the Authority’s statements of financial positions and amortization is provided for in a
systematie manner consistent with the Authority’s amortization policy for similar property and
equipment.

o Lease income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
. If a lease incentive'is provided, it'is accounted for as a reduction to rental income.

b) When the Authority is the/lessee under an operating lease, neither an asset nor a liability is recognized
in relation to the leased asset.

o Lease payments are expensed as a direct expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease.

o  Lease incentives are recognized as a reduction to rental expense on a straight-line basis.

In circumstances where straight-line recognition of lease income or expense does not accurately reflect the
Authority’s pattern of benefit or cost under a lease, some other systematic method may be applied that
better reflects the patterns.

FOR DISCUSSION WITH MANAGEMENT ONLY — SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT

NOT TO BE FURTHER COMMUNICATED (8)
G:\TORONTO PARKING AUTHORITY 001-FIN.docx June 20, 2012 5:05 PM



DRAFT

Toronto Parking Authority

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010

(all amounts are in Canadian dollars)

5

IFRS issued but not yet adopted

Unless otherwise noted, the following revised standards and amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2013, with earlier application permitted. The Authority has not yet assessed the
impact of these standards and amendments or determined whether it will early adopt them.

a) IFRS o9, Financial Instruments, was issued in November 2009 and addresses classification and
measurement of financial assets. It replaces the multiple category and measurement models in IAS 39,
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, for debt instruments with a new mixed
measurement model having only two categories: amortized cost.and fair value through profit or loss.

b) IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement, is a comprehensive standard for fair value measurement and disclosure
for use across all IFRS. The new standard clarifies that fair value is the price that would be received to sell
a financial asset, or paid to transfer a financial liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants, at the measurement date. Under existing IFRS; guidance on measuring and disclosing fair
value is dispersed among the specific standards requiring fair value measurements and does not always
reflect a clear measurement basis or consistent disclosures.

¢) IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, has been amended to include additional disclosure
requirements in the reporting of transfer transactions and risk exposures relating to transfers of financial
assets and the effect of those risks on an entity’s financial position. This amendment is applicable on
January 1, 2012 for the‘Authority.

d) IAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation, has been amended to provide further guidance on the
criterion to offset financial assets-and liabilities. Specifically, further guidance is provided in the
determination that an entity has a legally enforceable right to set off recognized amounts and the
determination that an-entity intends to settle on-anet basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. This amendment is applicable on January 1, 2014 for the Authority.

Transition to IFRS

The Authority’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011 are the first financial statements
prepared in accordance with IFRS.In'its first IFRS financial statements, the Authority applied IFRS 1, First-
time Adoption of IFRS. Among other requirements, IFRS 1 requires retrospective application of IFRS in effect
at December 31, 2011 and the inclusion of an opening statement of financial position at the date of transition to
IFRS. The date of transition to IFRS was January 1, 2010.

Exemptions from other standards

The Authority elected to apply the exemption under IFRS 1, First time Adoption of IFRS, not to reassess
whether an arrangement existing at the transition date contained a lease based on circumstances and facts
existing at the transition date rather than to retrospectively assess each agreement as at the transition date.
There is no impact on these financial statements as a result of applying this exemption.
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Reconciliation from Canadian GAAP to IFRS

The following reconciliations are included to demonstrate the impact on the financial statements of the
transition to IFRS:

reconciliation of assets, liabilities and equity at the transition date of January 1, 2010;
reconciliation of assets, liabilities and equity - comparative year;and

reconciliation of comprehensive income - comparative year.,

The reconciliations contain the following adjustments;

a)

b)

c)

d)

IAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, requires that costs incurred subsequently to replace parts of some
items of property and equipment be capitalized if they meet the recognition criteria, This standard also
requires that the carrying amount of the replaced part be derecognized. The adjustment reflects the
derecognition of replaced parts that occurred prior to the transition date in the amount of $3,842,338 as at
January 1, 2010 and $2,734,883 as at December-31, 2010. Amortization expense for the year ended
December 31, 2010 was reduced by $1,123,630-and $16,175 was expensed-as a result of derecognition of
replaced parts in the statements of comprehensive income.

As required by IAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, the Authority has
separately identified amounts that meet the definition of provisions in the standard.

Under Canadian GAAP, distributions to the City of Toronto, the Authority’s controlling entity, did not meet
the definition-of an equity transaction because of the absence of share capital. However, distributions to
controlling entities are considered; in substance, the equivalent of cash dividends paid to owners under
IFRS and are classified as equity transactions. In transitioning from Canadian GAAP to IFRS, these
transactions are recorded in the statements of changes in equity rather than the statements of
comprehensive income and are considered a financing rather than an operating activity in the statements
of cash flows. In the statement of cash flows for the comparative period ended December 31, 2010, cash
distributions to the City of $59,293,443 have been reclassified from operating to financing activities. The
amount represents the City’s share of net income as described in note 20.

Under Canadian GAAP, interest income and finance charges are classified as operating activities. Under
IFRS, interest received and finance charges are classified as investing activities and financial activities,
respectively.
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Transition to IFRS

i) Reconciliation of assets, liabilities and equity at the transition date of January 1, 2010
GAAP as Effect of Prior period
previously transition restatements As restated
reported to)IFRS under IFRS
$ $ $ $ $
(note 6 (a), (b)) (note 25) (note 25)
Assets
Finance lease receivable (current) - - 617,519 - 617,519
Prepaid expenses 533,965 - (76,574) - 457,391
Deferred charges 458;132 - (458,132) - -
Finance lease receivable (long-term) - - - 6,737,820 6,737,820
Property and equipment 131,544,254 (3,842,338) 216,332 (3,003,675) 124,914,573
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 7,590,141 (630,344) - - 6,959,797
Provisions - 630,344 - - 630,344
Equity 169,254,058 (3,842,338) (318,374) 4,351,664 169,445,010
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ii) Reconciliation of assets, liabilities and equity for comparative year as at December 31, 2010
GAAP as Effect of Prior period
previously transition restatements As restated
reported to IFRS under IFRS
$ $ $ $ $
(note 6 (a), (b)) (note 25) (note 25)
Assets
Finance lease receivable (current) - - - 648,050 648,050
Prepaid expenses 582,741 - (76,574) - 506,167
Deferred charges 381,559 - (381,559) - -
Finance lease receivable (long-term) - - - 6,776,653 6,766,653
Property and equipment 144,610,952 (2,734,883) 127,526 (3,003,675) 138,999,920
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 8,876,206 (866,126) - - 8,010,080
Provisions - 866,126 - - 866,126
Equity 189,052,641 (2,734,883) (330,607) 4,411,028 190,398,179
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iii) Reconciliation of comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2010

December 31,

Note 2010
$
Net income and comprehensive income as reported under
Canadian GAAP 19,798,583
Increase (decrease) in Canadian GAAP income for
City of Toronto share of income as equity transaction 6(c) 59,293,443
Property and equipment amortization 6(a) 1,123,630
Replacement parts 6(a) (16,175)
Prior period restatement
Lease accounting - lessee 25 (12,233)
Lease account - lessor 25 59,364
80,246,612
iv) Reconciliation of cash flow statement for the year ended December 31, 2010
Net cash flow
Operating from investing Financing
Note Activities activities activities
$ $ $
GAAP as previously reported (3,109,181) (1,425,965) 13,523,659
Adjust GAAP to comprehensive
income 1,154,586 - -
Reclassification of distributions

to City as equity 6(¢c) 59,293,443 - (59,293,443)
Change to amortization expense 6(a), 25 (1,034,823) - -
Adjustment to prepaid lease

payments 25 (76,574) - -
Reclassification of

interest/finance charges 6(d) (4,614,722) - -
Interest received on finance

lease as lessor 6(d) - 617,519 -
Interest received from held-for-

trading financial-assets 6(d) - 4,024,577 -

Reduction to property and
equipment purchase -
replacement parts
expensed 6(a) - 16,175
Reclassification of finance
charges paid on long-term
debt 6(d) - - (86,738)

As restated under IFRS 51,612,729 3,232,306 (45,856,522)
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7  Critical accounting judgments and estimates

In applying the Authority’s accounting policies as described in note 4, summary of significant accounting
policies, management is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period.

The estimates and judgments management made in applying the Authority’s accounting policies relate to:
o Finance lease receivable

The present value of the lease receivable is based onmanagement’s estimate of future minimum lease
payments, which include an estimation of future fair'value and residual value of the property. Management
has made a judgment on the lease classification.

« Property and equipment

Management judgment is applied in determining amortization rates and useful lives of assets. In addition,
management has assessed whether properties should be classified as investment properties based on
criteria developed by the Authority (note 4).

IAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, states that when-a relevant asset includes components that are
significant to the overall cost of the asset, they are required to be classified and amortized separately. The
Authority has reviewed'its property, plant and equipment and identified that its parking garages should be
componentized. As a result, the useful life of parking garages has been amended to identify the useful lives
of different components of the garages. As this is a change in accounting estimates, the adjustment is
applied prospectively. The impact is a $392,000 decrease in amortization going forward.

8 Investments

Investments consist of bonds with financial institations with a weighted average yield to maturity of 2.7%
(2010 - 3.04%) and an average duration to maturity of 3.53 years (2010 - 4.91 years).

Investments include interest receivable of $251,830 (2010 - $392,357).

Investments reported in the statements of financial position at a fair value of $58,127,630 (2010 - $60,605,661)
have a cost of $58,021,205 (2010 - $61,163,404).
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Income from investments is included in income earned on financial instruments in the statements of
comprehensive income and is composed of the following:

2011 2010
$ $
Interest earned on cash balances 185,716 109,303
Interest earned on investments 1,633,518 2,128,103
Realized gain on sale of investments 902,728 1,787,172
2,721,962 4,024,578
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments - net 396,504 (536,816)
3,118,466 3,487,762

9 Accounts receivable
2011 2010
$ $
Gross value 1,291,095 1,154,929
Provision for uncollectible accounts (123,000) (127,000)
Accounts receivable - net 1,168,095 1,027,929

Writeoffs charged to the provision during the year were '$31,348 (2010 - $131,231).
10 Finance lease receivable

A receivable under a finance lease is presented in the statements of financial position as follows:

2011 2010

$ $

Finance lease receivable, current 648,050 648,050
Finance lease receivable, long-term portion 6,799,363 6,766,653
7,447,413 7,414,703

As lessor, the Authority has recognized a receivable from a hotel tenant for use of the land on which a hotel was
constructed at 220 Bloor Street West. The ground lease is for a 99-year term with a commencement date of
September 1, 1989, at which point lease payments commenced (note 25). Minimum lease payments are defined
in the lease for the first 11 years after which adjustments were made to the minimum payments for each
subsequent block of five rental years based on changes in the consumer price index. Percentage rent is also
payable each lease year based on 6% of the hotel’s gross receipts in excess of minimum rent.

A reconciliation of the gross investment in the lease to the present value of the minimum lease payments
receivable (the Authority’s net investment in the lease) and the payments due are detailed in the following
schedules:
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Present

Gross value

investment in Future of minimum

lease finance lease

Lease receivable - payments due receivable income payments
$

Not more than 1 year 648,050 (683,887) (35,837)

1 year but not more than 5 years 2,613,800 (2,771,950) (158,150)

Over 5 years 57,234,720 (49,593,320) 7,641,400

60,496,570 (53,049,157) 7,447,413

There is an insignificant unguaranteed residual value recognized in light of the 99-year term of the lease and the
uncertainty of the land value at such a distant point in the future. While the Authority legally retains title to the
land, the present value of the land at the end of the lease term, if determinable, would likely not be significant.
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11 Property and equipment

Property and equipment held by the Authority are detailed in the following schedule.

Parking
garages - Older
concrete parking Surface
structural Parking garages and carparks.- Carparks
component garages other, acquired and
with acquired components by finance Equipment projects-
40-year by finance with a 25-year Surface lease and in-
Land useful life lease useful life carparks $ furnishings process Total
$ $ $ 3 $ $
Note 0] (if)
Cost at January 1, 2010 63,785,187 19,554,453 1,996,740 48,203,081 15,616,095 223,428 50,399,388 2,279,158 202,057,530
Transfer to completed works - - - - 2,279,158 - - (2,279,158) -
Acquisitions (net transfers) in 2010 (812,231) - B 13,291,124 - - 9,048,430 - 21,527,323
Disposals in 2010 (160,074) - - - (19,055) - (24,972) - (204,101)
Cost at December 31, 2010 62,812,882 19,554,453 1,996,740 61,494,205 17,876,198 223,428 59,422,846 - 223,380,752
Acquisitions in 2011 2,909,445 - = 2,398,984 753,084 - 1,175,468 50,157 7,287,138
Disposals in 2011 - - - - - - (34,377) - (34,377)
Cost at December 31, 2011 65,722,327 19,554,453 1,996,740 63,893,189 18,629,282 223,428 60,563,937 50,157 230,633,513
Accumulated amortization
January 1, 2010 - 6,276,571 1,798,282 32,750,950 4,043,670 205,554 32,067,930 - 77,142,957
Amortization in 2010 - 782,178 79,870 1,645,981 531,608 8,937 4,233,328 - 7,281,902
Disposals in 2010 - - - - (19,055) - (24,972) - (44,027)
Accumulated amortization at
December 31, 2010 - 7,058,749 1,878,152 34,396,931 4,556,223 214,491 36,276,286 - 84,380,832
Amortization in 2011 - 389,843 79,870 2,114,903 601,580 8,937 4,220,045 - 7,415,178
Disposals in 2011 - - - - - - (34,374) - (34,374)
Accumulation amortization at
December 31, 2011 - 7,448,592 1,958,022 36,511,834 5,157,803 223,428 40,461,957 - 91,761,636
Net book value at January 1, 2010 63,785,187 13,277,882 198,458 15,452,131 11,572,425 17,874 18,331,458 2,279,158 124,914,573
Net book value at December 31, 2010 62,812,882 12,495,704 118,588 27,097,274 13,319,975 8,937 23,146,560 - 138,999,920
Net book value at December 31, 2011 65,722,327 12,105,861 38,718 27,381,355 13,471,479 - 20,101,980 50,157 138,871,877
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a)

b)

Notes to schedule of property and equipment

i)
ii)

This component includes only the concrete structure of garage facilities built since 1990.

This component includes the entire garage (structure and other components) built prior to 1990 and
the non-structural components of garages built since 1990. All are-amortized over a 25-year useful

Title to all land purchased by the Authority is held by the City.

As at December 31, 2011 there are contractual commitments-for the purchase or sale of property and
equipment. Many of the commitments described below involve, in partnership with private developers, the
sale of above grade strata title to air rights overland on which the Authority currently operates parking lots
and the purchase of above grade and/or substrata title to parking structures in a completed development.
Sale of above grade strata title is also known as selling condominium rights.

i)

ii)

iii)

In 2008, the Authority entered into.an agreement with a private developer that requires the
Authority to purchase a 209-space underground garage at an estimated cost not to exceed
$9,000,000 when title to the completed facility is transferred. The project had not commenced
as at December 31, 2011.

In 2010, the Authority entered into an agreement with.a private developer under which the
Authority received cash proceeds for the sale of above strata air rights plus future delivery of a
150-space underground garage valued at'$6,000,000. The project had not commenced as at
Deeember 31, 2011 and-the prepayment of the garage is recorded on the statements of financial
position as an.investment in a garage. The agreement requires construction of the garage to
commence before the end of 2014. The-agreement allows for a purchase price bonus to be paid to
the Authority should the purchaser achieve site density in excess of specified thresholds. A
density bonus of $1.6'million was received by the Authority in 2012.

In 2011, the Authority entered into an agreement with another private developer providing for
the sale of above grade strata title over land on which a parking garage now operates. The
proceeds will be in the’form of cash plus delivery of strata title to an 800-space underground
garage to be built under a residential condominium. The sale proceeds of the above grade strata
title will be $76,000,000, less the garage cost of $32,000,000 for net proceeds of $44,000,000.
The agreement allows for a purchase price bonus to be paid to the Authority should the
purchaser achieve site density in excess of a specified threshold.

The purchase and sale agreement has been approved by the Authority and City Council.
Beginning in 2012, the Authority will receive 5% of the unpaid balance and interest on the
unpaid balance until closing in December 2015. The Authority waived all of its conditions in
March 2012. The project is not expected to commence until 2016.
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iv) In 2011, the Authority entered into an agreement with a private developer to sell the above grade
air rights over an existing surface parking lot for consideration of $3,000,000 plus additional
consideration in the future should the final approved density and residential condominium sales
levels exceed specified thresholds. The agreement also commits the Authority to purchase a 40-
space (approximate) garage to be included in the final development for a price not to exceed
$40,000 per space. The project has not commenced as at December 31, 2011.

V) In 2011, the Authority entered into an agreement with a private developer to sell the above grade
air rights over an existing surface parking lot for consideration of $4,900,000. The agreement
also commits the Authority to purchase approximately 66 spaces in an underground parking
garage for a price not to exceed $45,000 per space-and a 10,000 square foot retail component
(for subsequent leasing) at a price to be based on market rental rates. The project has not
commenced as at December 31, 2011«

vi) The Authority has committed to purchase two properties for subsequent development into
surface parking lots. One purchase for $910,000 closed on May 4, 2012 and the other purchase
for $950,000 is scheduled to close on December 10; 2012.

¢) Ina prior year, the Authority, as a lessee, entered into three long-term leases for terms of 25, 35 and 50
years to acquire the use of two parking structures and one surface lot.'Under each lease, rent was in the
form of a one-time lump 'sum payment at the inception of the lease and amounted to $2,220,168 in total for
all three leases. The lump sum payments approximated the fair)value of the assets acquired and have been
recorded as the costof each asset. Each property is classified as property and equipment acquired by
finance lease and amortized in accordance with the 'Authority’s policy for similar assets. The unamortized
cost (cost less-accumulated amortization) of these three assets at December 31, 2011 is $38,718 (2010 -

$127,525).
12 Provisions
As at December 31, 2011, the Authority has recorded provisions for the following liabilities:

o  The Authority has not yet been/assessed or billed for property taxes on certain parcels of land acquired for
parking purposes. A provision'for the estimated amount of property tax owing on these properties was
determined using the assessed value of similar properties and the actual tax rates for the year. It is
expected the properties will be assessed and billing rendered within the next year.

o  The Authority is the defendant in a claim for unpaid fees related to a prior year land purchase. An amount
has been accrued based on the opinion of legal counsel as to the likely outcome. The timing of the payout
cannot be estimated with certainty.
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The change in the provision during the year is as follows:

$
Provision at December 31, 2010 866,126
Amount charged against provision (188,319)
Unused amounts reversed during the year (522,116)
New provisions during the year 35,753
Provision at December 31, 2011 191,444

13 Related party transactions and balances
Related party relationships

The City is the ultimate controlling entity of the Authority as exercised through direction approved by City
council. As related parties, the Authority and City enter into transactions and have outstanding balances owing
and commitments to each other at points in time.

Other related parties with whom the Authority has significant transactions and who are related by virtue of
being part of the same group controlled by the City are:

e  Toronto Transit Commission (TTC) - the Authority manages the commuter parking lots of the TTC on a
cost recovery basis and for a fixed management fee.

o  City of Toronto - the Authority operates parking lots on a number of properties under the control of the
parks and recreation and real estate departments of the City. The Authority pays rent for the use of these
properties, typically calculated as a percentage of the net income earned. From time to time, the Authority
utilizes services of the City’s in-house legal department at billing rates charged to other departments.

o  Toronto Hydro - the Authority utilizes hydro service at prevailing market billing rates.

« Key management personnel -.the Authority’s board of directors and certain senior officers are considered
related parties when they have responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
Authority.

Related party transactions

The Authority operates 50 (2010 - 53) parking facilities on a year-round basis on properties owned by other City
departments and agencies. There are 15 (2010 - 15) other locations operated during the summer months on
behalf of the Parks and Recreation Department of the City. These parking facilities are operated under
separately negotiated agreements with each City department or agency. The Authority receives compensation in
the form of either a share of net income or on a cost recovery plus a fixed fee basis.

In the normal course of operations, the Authority incurs costs for various expenses payable to the City and
related entities such as hydro, legal and other administrative costs.
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Amounts paid to the City

City’'s share of the Authority’s net income

Municipal property taxes

Hydro and water

Rent paid for use of City-owned properties

Legal services

Office, maintenance supplies and other
Hydro costs paid to Toronto Hydro
Management fee received from the TTC

Related party balances

Amounts due to related parties are as follows:

Due to the City
Due to the TTC
Due to Toronto Hydro

2011 2010

$ $
42,749,302 59,293,443
17,349,635 18,097,007
2,188,003 2,128,769
1,354,853 1,739,158
133,002 140,299
203,397 98,549
293,356 294,677
126,926 118,284
2011 2010

$ $
11,619,626 30,824,150
697,067 570,956
397,808 453,318
12,714,501 31,848,424

Amounts owing are due-on demand and are non-interest bearing.

As at December 31, 2011, amounts due‘from related parties that are included in accounts receivable are as

follows:

Due from the TTC
Due from the City

2011 2010

$ $
608,873 480,907
35,414 39,046
644,287 519,953

Reserve funds

The City maintains a number of reserve funds on behalf of the Authority. These reserve funds were established
by City council and are detailed in Chapter 227 of the City of Toronto Municipal Code. The City holds the

following reserve funds for use by the Authority in funding capital projects.

o  Parking Authority Shopping Mall Rented Properties Reserve Fund (PASMRPRF)

Net income generated by retail leasing operations that are developed and operated by the Authority is paid
annually into the PASMRPRF to fund property and equipment purchases. During the year, gross revenue

earned was $1,276,806 (2010 - $1, 314,728) and expenses incurred were $699,494 (2010 - $920,672). The
balance in this fund as at December 31, 2011 is $3,022,716 (2010 - $2,422,570). During 2011 and 2010, no

money was drawn from the PASMRPREF to finance property and equipment additions.
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o  Parking Payment In Lieu Reserve Fund

Parking payments received by the City from developers under agreements in lieu of providing facilities are
paid into the Parking Payment in Lieu Reserve Fund to fund property and equipment purchases. The
amount credited into this fund during 2011 was $920,081 (2010 - $nil). The balance in this fund as at
December 31, 2011 is $8,684,660 (2010 - $7, 691,937). During 2011 and 2010, no money was drawn from
the fund to finance property and equipment additions.

Compensation of directors and key management

Compensation to the key managers, including directors, with responsibility to plan, direct and control the
operations of the Authority is $1,161,000 (2010 - $1,105,000) and consists of salaries and short-term benefits.

14 Debt payable
Debt payable consists of:

e Anamount of $1,792,100 (2010 - $3,792,100)-is owing for the purchase of equipment upgrades undertaken
in 2007, all of which is current (2010 - $2,000,000) and is included in current liabilities. In 2012, the debt
was fully repaid. The amount payable does not bear interest and has not been discounted.

¢ An amount of $7,104,103 (2010 -'$7,450,825) is.owing for the purchase of equipment upgrades undertaken
in 2009 and 2010, of which $6,736,335 (2010 - $7,104,103) is classified as long-term and $367,768 (2010 -
$346,722) is included-in current liabilities. The original amount owing of $7,618,088 is payable over 15
years at an effective interest rate of 2.298% with the term ending on June 30, 2025. Finance interest paid
during the year was $167,630 (2010.- $86,738).

Debt payablewill be repaid as follows:

$

2012 2,159,868
2013 389,629
2014 412,330
2015 435,900
2016 460,367
2017 and thereafter 5,038,109
8,896,203

15 Equity

Equity of the Authority represents the accumulated retained comprehensive income of the Authority, less
distributions to the City. Equity of the Authority is retained to fund the purchase and maintenance of major
property and equipment. The Authority is without share capital with the City holding a 100% beneficial interest
in the Authority’s equity.
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16 Parking revenue

Parking revenue is made up of the following components:

2011 2010
On-street Off-street Total Total
$ $

Short-term fees - cash and credit
card 46,112,324 66,124,756 112,237,080 109,743,258
Short-term fees - Fast Track card 71,457 360,797 432,254 338,546
Monthly parking permit sales < 5,904,091 5,904,091 5,878,688
Courtesy charges - 320,808 320,808 374,662
Special event billings - 478,578 478,578 276,384
46,183,781 73,189,030 119,372,811 116,611,538

17 Employee benefits
Salary, wages and benefits included in direct expenses - operating consist of:
2011 2010
On-street Off-street Total Total
$ $
Salaries and wages 1,921,367 10,778,276 12,699,643 12,345,241
Benefits expense 264,601 1,793,157 2,057,758 2,087,096
OMERS pension plan contributions 113,413 778,094 891,507 730,329
CanadaPension-Plan premiums 54,722 461,173 515,895 488,066
2,354,103 13,810,700 16,164,803 15,650,732
Salary, wages and benefits included in administration expense consist of:
2011 2010
$ $
Salary 3,655,777 3,584,214
Benefits expense 750,129 747,349
OMERS Pension Plan contributions 324,002 297,039
Canada Pension Plan premiums 122,433 119,645
4,852,341 4,748,247
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Other income

Other income consists of the following amounts:

Income earned on financial instruments
Held-for-trading financial assets - fair value adjustment
Investment income from held-for-trading financial assets
Interest earned - finance lease (loans and receivables)

Other income
Gain on sale of property and equipment
Property tax refund
Miscellaneous other income

Operating leases in which the Authority is the lessor

2011 2010
$ $
396,504 (536,816)
2,721,962 4,024,578
680,760 676,883
3,799,226 4,164,645
7,178 25,957,459
2,392,902 -
974,970 1,262,487
3,375,050 27,219,946
7,174,276 31,384,591

The Authority is lessor in a number of operating leases for building properties. The future minimum lease
payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases for these properties are:

Receivable-in:

Not'more-than 1 year
1 year but not more than 5 years
Over 5 years

These operating leases do not provide for contingent rental payments.

City’s share of net income

2011 2010

$ $
871,639 895,157
1,720,712 2,283,639
1,734,186 2,042,898
4,326,537 5,221,694

In 1998, the City and the Authority established an income-sharing arrangement for a three-year period ending
December 31, 2000. The arrangement has been continuously renewed, most recently for the 2010 to 2012
period. Under this renewal, the Authority pays annual rent equal to the greater of 75% of its comprehensive

income for the year or $30,000,000.
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One-time payments to the City

From time to time, the Authority will pay an amount to the City that is in excess of its forecasted capital budget
funding requirements over the ensuing ten-year period. The capital budget is the plan in which most property
and equipment purchases are approved. This return of funds is in addition to the City’s share of annual
comprehensive income paid under the income-sharing arrangement. When property sales occur, gains on sale
of the property sold, typically under agreements with private developers,are included in the profit or loss of the
Authority. Under the income-sharing arrangement, the Authority retains only 25% of such gains to fund capital
requirements. The agreements typically take the form of a sale of air rights at an existing surface car park
followed by the supply of underground garage spaces to the Authority in the redeveloped property. The
Authority thereby maintains or expands its existing supply of parking spaces while maximizing the value of the
land. When evaluating such opportunities, the Authority requires that the proceeds from the sale of the air
rights be sufficient to fund the underground garage spaces purchased as part of the redevelopment
arrangement. On most projects, the cost of the underground parking has either been less than or has not
significantly exceeded the 25% portion of the gain on the sale the Authority retains to fund-its purchase.

Funding of capital program

Under the City of Toronto Municipal Code, Chapter 227, any.earnings retained by the Authority are to be
applied in the following order:

i)  to principal and interest on debentures issued to finance the cost-of parking facilities;

ii) toward the cost of new parking facilities; and

iii) for otherpurposes as determined by City-Council.

Incomeretained by the Authority, after payments to the City of 75% of its comprehensive income and any one-
time payments, is used solely to fund its capital program. The Authority has never financed new car park
development through debentures or any otherform of debt financing.

During 2010 and 2011, the Authority, as part of its capital program funding analysis, determined it did not have
excess funds available from its.capital program to return to the City as a one-time distribution. In 2008 and
2009, the Authority returned a total of $30,000,000 to the City as one-time distributions.

Financial instruments

IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, requires disclosure of a three level hierarchy for fair value
measurement that reflects the significance of the inputs used in valuing an asset or liability measured at fair

value. The three levels are defined as follows:

o  Level 1- fair value is based on quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 1 assets and liabilities generally include equity securities traded in an active exchange market.
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e  Level 2 - fair value is based on observable inputs, other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted market prices
for similar (but not identical) assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted market prices for identical
assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, and other inputs that are observable or can be
corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

o Level 3 - fair value is based on non-observable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and
that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities. This category generally includes private
equity investments and securities that have liquidity restrictions.

The fair value of the Authority’s investments, which are comprised of Canadian government and corporate
bonds, were determined based on observable inputs for similar instruments quoted in active markets and as
such these investments are considered to be Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments

The Authority’s investment activities expose it to certain financial risks. These risks include market risk (foreign
currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Authority manages these
financial risks in accordance with its policy on investments, which restricts investments to high quality,
conservative instruments prescribed for municipalities under Ontario Regulation 610/06 (Financial Activities)
of the City of Toronto Act, 2006.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. The Authority manages market risk by investing in a range of maturity terms with
diverse issuers. Market risk is comprised of the following:

o  Foreign currency risk
The Authority has no material exposure to foreign currency risk.
o Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers tothe‘effect on the fair value or future cash flows of an investment or debt
obligations due to fluctuations in interest rates. Historically, as opportunities arise, the Authority has sold
investments when interest rates have been declining in order to realize the resulting profits. The Authority
is not exposed to significant interest rate risk on its monetary current assets and current liabilities due to
their short-term maturities. The Authority’s long-term debt has a fixed rate of interest and is therefore not
subject to fair value changes as a result of interest rate changes.

The investment portfolio primarily consists of fixed interest securities. The investment portfolio’s
sensitivity to interest rate changes is such that a 1% increase in interest rates would result in a 3.31%
reduction in the fair value of the portfolio. Conversely, a 1% decrease in interest rates would result in a
3.31% increase in the fair value of the portfolio.
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. Price risk

Price risk is the risk the fair value of an investment will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
(other than those arising from foreign currency risk or interest rate risk).

The Authority is exposed to changes in electricity prices associated with-the wholesale spot market for
electricity in Ontario. The Authority has not addressed the commodity price risk exposure associated with
changes in the wholesale price of electricity as it has not entered-into any energy related purchase and sales
contracts since 2009.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk the Authority will be unable to redeem investments or collect accounts receivable or other
debts due to it. The Authority collects revenues primarily in cash and does not extend a significant amount of
trade credit. The Authority attempts to control credit risk onits investments through a conservative investment
policy, which involves only purchasing investments prescribed in the financial activities regulation of the City of
Toronto Act, 2006 and focusing on issuers with strong credit ratings. Credit risk is considered low.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk the Authority will be unable to settle or meet commitments as they come due. The
Authority’s commitments are largely in the form of short-term liabilities, which are met out of cash flows
generated by operating activities and long-term investments. Varying maturities of investments are purchased
to ensure the Authority can fund its capital program as needs arise. Long-term liabilities are not considered
material and repayment is scheduled to allow settlement from cash flows generated from operating activities.
The effect is a’stable-cash flow from operations, which acts to reduce liquidity risk.

The tables below are a maturity analysis of the Authority’s financial liabilities:

2011
More than More than

Uptol 1monthup 1year up More than
month to 1 year to 5 years 5years Total
$ $ $ $ $

Accounts payable and

accrued liabilities 7,665,994 - - - 7,665,994
Due to related parties 12,714,501 - - - 12,714,501
Debt payable 43,392 2,116,476 1,698,226 5,038,109 8,896,203
20,423,887 2,116,476 1,698,226 5,038,109 29,276,698
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Accounts payable and

accrued liabilities
Due to related parties
Debt payable

22 Capital management

2010
More than  More than

Uptol 1monthup 1year up More than
month to 1 year to 5 years 5years Total
$ $ $ $ $
8,010,080 - - - 8,010,080
31,848,424 - - - 31,848,424
42,333 2,304,389 3,397,727 5,498,477 11,242,926
39,900,837 2,304,389 3,397,727 5,498,477 51,101,430

The Authority returns 75% of its annual comprehensive income to the City and retains 25% to fund its long-
term, multi-year capital budget plan. As such, the majority of the Authority’s capital is already invested in
property and equipment and the majority of funding for the multi-year capital plan is derived from future
income still to be earned. The Authority attempts to maintain capital on hand at a level sufficient to fund one to
two years of capital investment and holds this capital in a combination of cash-and longer term bonds to
balance the dual goals of maximizing returns while maintainingsufficient liquidity to allow the Authority to
react to capital investment opportunities as they arise.

To the extent funding is projected to exceed capital budget needs over the capital budget period, excess funds
are returned to the City in order to maintain capital levels at one to two years of capital investment needs.

As at December 31, 2011, the Authority’has-met its objective of having sufficient liquid resources to meet its
current obligations and fund capital investment opportunities as they arise.

23 Commitments and contingent liabilities

Commitments

« Commitments to purchase property and equipment are disclosed in note 11, property and equipment.

o  The Authority has a commitment under an extended warranty agreement with a third party for the
servicing of pay and display equipment. The agreement expires on June 30, 2025 and calls for future
payments by the Authority starting at $1,400,000 in 2012 based on current equipment totals with an
annual inflation factor increase based on the Consumer Price Index (CPI).

e On behalf of the Authority, the City enters into contracts to purchase natural gas at fixed prices. These
contracts are entered into and continue to be held for the purpose of receipt of natural gas in accordance
with the Authority’s expected usage.

o  Future minimum payments under a snow clearing contract that expires in 2015 are estimated at
$1,200,000 by 2012 with an annual inflation factor increase based on CPI.
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o  Commitments under operating leases for use of land and equipment are as follows:

Payable in: 2011 2010
$ $

Not more than 1 year 1,088,000 961,000
1 year but not more than 5 years 2,808,000 2,603,000
Over 5 years 1,169,000 1,636,000
5,065,000 5,200,000

Contingent rent paid under these leases is based on a percentage of income earned by the Authority related
to the leased properties. The amount of contingent rent paid under these leases during the year was
$3,014,000 (2010 - $2,711,000).

Contingent liabilities

The Authority has contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims arising in the ordinary course of business. At
present, the outcome of these cases is not determinable. The Authority believes these claims are without merit
and will vigorously defend itself in each of these actions: It is not anticipated that any material liabilities will
arise from the contingent liabilities, other than those provided for.

24 Statements of cash flows

The net change in non-cash working capital balances related to operating activities consists of the following:

2011 2010

$ $

Accounts.receivable (140,166) 654,040
Supplies (13,337) (3,243)
Prepaid expenses (61,665) (48,776)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (344,086) 1,050,283
Provisions (674,682) 235,782
Deferred revenue (77,193) 43,015
Due to related parties (19,133,923) (7,811,521)
(20,445,052) (5,880,420)

25 Prior period restatements

The detailed review carried out by management that was necessary to identify and effect the changes to
practices, policies and accounts required for transition to IFRS revealed transactions entered into in the past
that were classified differently than Canadian GAAP prescribed at that time. In transitioning to IFRS, these
transactions were reclassified as a prior period adjustment as they were not accounted for in the prescribed
manner in the past and in order to conform to IFRS.

Management noted that the Authority had entered into long-term leases in which lump sum payments were
paid at the inception of the leases. These amounts were recorded as deferred charges and amortized into
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income over the terms of the leases. It was determined that the Authority assumed the risks and benefits of
ownership of each of the leases and thus they should have been accounted for as capital leases.

In addition, the Authority had entered into an agreement prior to the transition date whereby the Authority
transferred the air rights to one of its properties to a third party under a ground lease with a term of 99 years,
which was the only method permitted by the City at the time. The Authority-accounted for the lease as an
operating lease. Under Canadian GAAP and IAS 17, Leases, the lease should have been recorded as a financing
lease.

The adjustments to various financial statement lines as at January 1, 2010 and December 31, 2010 as a result of
these prior period restatements are summarized as follows:

January 1,
2010
As Adjustment

previously for prepaid Adjustment IFRS Balance
reported lease for long-term transition after
payments ground lease adjustments restatement
$ $ $ $
(note 6) (Unaudited)

Finance lease receivable
(current) - - 617,519 - 617,519
Prepaid expenses 533,965 (76,574) - - 457,391

Finance lease receivable
(long-term) - - 6,737,820 - 6,737,820
Deferred charges 458,132 (458,132) - - -
Property and equipment 131,544,254 216,332 (3,003,675) (3,842,338) 124,914,573
Retained earnings 169,254,058 (318,374) 4,351,664 (3,842,338) 169,445,010
December 31,
2010

Adjustment
As for prepaid Adjustment IFRS Balance
previously lease for long-term transition after
reported payments ground lease adjustments restatement
$ $ $ $
(note 6)

Finance lease receivable
(current) - - 648,050 - 648,050
Prepaid expenses 582,741 (76,574) - - 506,167

Finance lease receivable
(long-term) - - 6,766,653 - 6,766,653
Deferred charges 381,559 (381,559) - - -
Property and equipment 144,610,952 127,526 (3,003,675) (2,734,883) 138,999,920
Retained earnings 189,052,641 (330,607) 4,411,028 (2,734,883) 190,398,179
Direct expenses, operating 35,951,297 (76,574) - 16,175 35,890,898

Amortization of property and

equipment 8,316,725 88,807 - (1,123,630) 7,281,902
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26 Direct expenses - operating

2011 2010
On-street Off-street Total Total
$ $ $ $

Salaries, wages and benefits
(note 17) 2,354,103 13,810,700 16,164,803 15,650,732

Maintenance of facilities and
equipment 1,802,047 2,760,726 4,562,773 5,421,392
Rent - 5,010,087 5,010,087 3,743,396
Utilities - 2,448,911 2,448,911 2,388,820

Pay and display network

communications 1,939,077 175,798 2,114,875 2,043,514
Tickets 992,079 382,065 1,374,144 1,532,763
Credit card processing fees 617,172 1,152,378 1,769,550 1,455,016
Security and monitoring 150 897,192 897,342 1,008,292
Snow clearing - 1,285,969 1,285,969 963,354
Insurance 64,382 711,039 775,421 718,187
Staff mileage 25,941 183,817 209,758 213,614
Telephone 5,434 210,399 215,833 206,180
Outside coin counting 100,293 39,060 139,353 174,150
Other 22,275 385,754 408,029 371,488
7,922,953 29,453,895 37,376,848 35,890,898
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[Client Letterhead]
June 19, 2012

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
North American Centre

5700 Yonge Street, Suite 1900
North York, Ontario

M2M 4K7

Dear Sirs:

We are providing this letter in connection with your audit of the financial statements of Toronto
Parking Authority (TPA) as of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 and for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether such
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position, the financial
performance and the cash flows of TPA in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS).

Management’s responsibilities

We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter dated

November 1, 2010. In particular, we confirm to you that:

e We are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS;

e We are responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. In this regard, we are responsible for establishing policies and
procedures that pertain to the maintenance of accounting systems and records, the authorization of
receipts and disbursements, the safeguarding of assets and for reporting financial information in
accordance with IFRS;

e We have provided you with all relevant information and access, as agreed in the terms of the audit
engagement; and

e All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial
statements.

Preparation of financial statements

The financial statements include all disclosures necessary for fair presentation in accordance with
IFRSs and disclosures otherwise required to be included therein by the laws and regulations to which
TPA is subject.

We have appropriately reconciled our books and records (e.g. general ledger accounts) underlying the
financial statements to their related supporting information (e.g. sub ledger or third party data). All
related reconciling items considered to be material were identified and included on the reconciliations
and were appropriately adjusted in the financial statements. There were no material unreconciled
differences or material general ledger suspense account items that should have been adjusted or
reclassified to another account balance. There were no material general ledger suspense account items
written off to a balance sheet account, which should have been written off to a profit and loss account
and vice versa. All intracompany accounts have been eliminated or appropriately measured and
considered for disclosure in the financial statements.



Accounting policies

We confirm that we have reviewed TPA’s accounting policies and, having regard to the possible
alternative policies, our selection and application of accounting policies and estimation techniques used
for the preparation and presentation of the financial statements is appropriate in TPA’s particular
circumstances to present fairly in all material respects its financial position, financial performance and
cash flows in accordance with IFRS.

Internal controls over financial reporting
We have designed disclosure controls and procedures to provide reasonable assurance that material
information relating to TPA is made known to us by others.

We have designed internal control over financial reporting to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with IFRS.

We have disclosed to you all deficiencies in the design or operation of disclosure controls and
procedures and internal control over financial reporting that we are aware as of December 31, 2011,
included in Appendix A.

Disclosure of information
We have provided you with:
e  Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the financial
statements, such as records, documentation and other matters including:
0 Contracts and related data;
0 Information regarding significant transactions and arrangements that are outside of the
normal course of business;
0 Minutes of the meetings of shareholders, management, directors and committees of directors.
The most recent meetings held were May 22, 2012;
e Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and
e Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to obtain
audit evidence.

Completeness of transactions

All contractual arrangements entered into by TPA with third parties have been properly reflected in the
accounting records or/and, where material (or potentially material) to the financial statements, have
been disclosed to you. We have complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a
material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance.

Fraud

We have disclosed to you:

e The results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated
as a result of fraud;

e All information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud of which we are aware affecting TPA
involving management, employees who have significant roles in internal control or others where
the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements; and

e All information in relation to any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting TPA’s financial
statements, communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others.

Compliance with laws and regulations

We have disclosed to you all aspects of laws, regulations and contractual agreements that may affect the
financial statements, including actual or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations whose
effects should be considered when preparing financial statements.



We are not aware of any illegal or possibly illegal acts committed by TPA’s directors, officers or
employees acting on TPA’s behalf.

Accounting estimates and fair value measurements
Significant assumptions used by TPA in making accounting estimates, including fair value accounting
estimates, are reasonable.

For recorded or disclosed amounts in the financial statements that incorporate fair value
measurements, we confirm that:

¢ The measurement methods are appropriate and consistently applied;

e The significant assumptions used in determining fair value measurements represent our best
estimates, are reasonable and have been consistently applied;

e No subsequent event requires adjustment to the accounting estimates and disclosures included in
the financial statements; and

e The significant assumptions used in determining fair value measurements are consistent with
TPA’s planned courses of action. We have no plans or intentions that have not been disclosed to
you, which may materially affect the recorded or disclosed fair values of assets or liabilities.

e The methodology and assumptions for arriving at the fair value of the property classified as a
finance lease with TPA as the lessor are reasonable. We have not attempted to quantify the residual
value of the property as we believe it has a negligible effect on the financial statements and its
discounted value is negligible.

o The estimated useful lives of property and equipment are appropriate and reasonable.

Significant estimates and measurement uncertainties known to management that are required to be
disclosed in accordance with International Accounting Standard (IAS) 1 — Presentation of Financial
Statements and IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures have been appropriately disclosed.

Related parties

We confirm the completeness of information provided to you regarding the identification of related
parties as defined by IAS 24 - Related Party Transactions. We also confirm the completeness of
information provided to you regarding the nature of TPA’s relationships with, and transactions
involving, those entities.

The identity and relationship of, and balances and transactions with, related parties have been properly
recorded and adequately disclosed in the financial statements as required by IFRS.

We confirm that we have identified to you all members of key management, as defined by IAS 24-
Related Party Transactions, and included their remuneration in the disclosures of key management
compensation in the financial statements.

The list of related parties attached to this letter as Appendix B accurately and completely describes
TPA’s related parties and the relationships with such parties.

Going concern

We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or classification of assets
and liabilities reflected in the financial statements (e.g. to dispose of the business or to cease
operations).

Assets and liabilities
We have satisfactory title or control over all assets. There are no liens or encumbrances on TPA’s assets
and no assets pledged as collateral.



Receivables recorded in the financial statements represent bona fide claims against debtors for sales or
other charges arising on or before the statement of financial position dates and are not subject to
discount except for normal cash discounts. Receivables classified as current do not include any material
amounts that are collectible after one year. All receivables have been appropriately reduced to their
estimated net realizable value.

We have recorded or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities, in accordance with IFRS. All liabilities
including contingent liabilities, including those associated with guarantees, whether written or oral,
under which TPA is contingently liable in accordance with IAS 37 — Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets have been disclosed to you and are appropriately reflected in the financial
statements.

Litigation and claims

All known actual or possible litigation and claims, which existed at the statement of financial position
date or exist now, have been disclosed to you and accounted for and disclosed in accordance with
IFRSs, whether or not they have been discussed with legal counsel.

Misstatements detected during the audit

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to those matters that are material.
Items are also considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of
accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the
judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would have been changed or influenced by
the omission or misstatement.

We confirm that the financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions.

The effects of the unadjusted misstatements in the financial statements, as summarized in the
accompanying schedule (Appendix C), are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the
financial statements taken as a whole. We confirm that we are not aware of any unadjusted
misstatements other than those included in Appendix C.

The adjusted misstatements identified during your audit and summarized in the attached table
(Appendix D) have been approved by us and adjusted in the financial statements.

Events after balance sheet date

We have identified all events that occurred between the statement of financial position date and the
date of this letter that may require adjustment of, or disclosure in, the financial statements, and have
effected such adjustment or disclosure.

Financial assets accounted for under IAS 39 (other than loans and receivables)

All financial instruments qualifying as assets of TPA and meeting the scope/recognition requirements
in IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, have been recorded in the financial
statements. Financial instruments that do not qualify for recognition as an asset of TPA under IAS 39
are excluded from the accounts and properly disclosed and/or accounted for under other applicable
standards.

All financial instruments are appropriately classified in the categories defined under IAS 39. There
have been no reclassifications between categories of financial instruments after initial recognition of a
financial instrument other than those disclosed in the financial statements that meet the
reclassification criteria in IAS 39.

Income earned on financial assets has been recorded in the accounts, and any interest income has been
accrued using the effective interest rate method.



We are not aware of any objective evidence of impairment that could result in the recognition of an
impairment loss on any financial asset.

Leases

We have reviewed and disclosed to you all new arrangements signed during the year to confirm
whether or not these have the form of a lease in accordance with the requirements of International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) 4, Determining Whether an Arrangement
Contains a Lease.

We have determined that none of them had the form of a lease had the form of a lease and we have
classified these new contracts as finance or operating lease arrangements using the guidance of IAS 17,
Leases.

We have disclosed to you any leases entered into during the year (including any sale/leaseback
transactions) and have appropriately considered the classification and accounting for such leases under
IAS 17, as finance or operating leases. For leases in which we are the lessee, we have appropriately
updated the disclosure of our lease commitments schedule and confirm its completeness to you.

All existing lease agreements have been disclosed to you and classified as finance or operating lease
arrangements using the guidance of IAS 17.

There have been no modifications of existing leases during the year (including renewals that were not
anticipated at the inception of the lease).

Where we are the lessee, assets held under finance leases have been amortized on a systematic basis
over the period of expected use. At initial recognition, the discount rate used in calculating the present
value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease.

Property, plant and equipment
Each significant individual component of acquired property, plant and equipment has been accounted
for separately in accordance with IAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment.

No significant additions of property, plant and equipment have been charged to repairs and
maintenance or other expense accounts.

Carrying values of property, plant and equipment sold, destroyed, abandoned or otherwise disposed of
have been eliminated from the accounts.

Property, plant and equipment owned by TPA have been depreciated on a systematic basis over their
estimated useful lives and the provision for depreciation was calculated on a basis consistent with that
of the previous date.

During the year, we have reviewed the residual values of property, plant and equipment taking into
account all pertinent factors. Any significant change in our assessment from the prior year has been
adequately disclosed and reflected in the financial statements.

In accordance with the requirements of IAS 36, Impairment of Assets, we have completed a search for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting year. Our conclusions have been that there were no
events or changes in circumstances that indicate that the carrying values of property, plant and
equipment are not recoverable. Accordingly, management was not required to perform an impairment
test in accordance with IAS 36 during the year.

Asset retirement obligations
There are no asset retirement obligations.



Long-term debt

All borrowings and financial obligations of TPA of which we are aware are included in the financial
statements as at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, as appropriate. We have fully disclosed to
you all borrowing arrangements of which we are aware.

We have appropriately classified as current and non-current the debt payable in TPA’s statement of
financial position as at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 in accordance with the guidance in
IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements. In evaluating the appropriate classification of TPA’s
borrowings, we have considered all relevant facts and circumstances.

We have no debt covenants on the debt payable.

IFRs 1 exemption on leases

Under Canadian GAAP, TPA applied the requirements of Emerging Issues Committee (EIC) 150,
Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease, which are similar to the ones of IFRIC 4,
Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease. In accordance with the guidance of paragraph
DoA of appendix D of IFRS 1, we have not reassessed the related determination when converting to
IFRS. Rather, we have only reviewed the arrangements TPA entered into before December 9, 2004
(effective date of EIC 150) and still effective as of date of transition to IFRS. There is no impact on the
financial statements as a result of applying this exemption.

Yours very truly,

Toronto Parking Authority

Gerard Daigle
Vice-President of Finance and Administration



Appendix A — Internal control recommendations

Item noted

Recommendation

Management’s response

We noted that
management reviews
exception reports for
payroll, however, there is
no formal sign off as
evidence of review.

We recommend that the reviewer
sign the reports as evidence of his
review.

Management agrees with the
recommendation and will formally
sign off on the review.

During our audit of the
rent receivables, it was
noted that balances are not
assessed for collectability.

Although the balances are not
material, we recommend that
Finance consult with the real estate
department to assess collectability.

Collectability of rent receivables are
assessed at least annually and
doubtful amounts are provided for
when justification exists.
Management is hesitant to write off
amounts too quickly as any
subsequent pursuit of collection
would cease.




Appendix B — Related parties

Toronto Transit Commission
City of Toronto
Toronto Hydro

Key management personnel (including TPA’s board of directors and certain senior officers)



Appendix C — Summary of Unadjusted Misstatements

2011
Comprehensive Statement of financial position
income
Description Over Assets Liabilities Equity
(under) | (over) under | over (under) | over (under)
stated stated stated stated
$ $ $ $
Differences in calculation of net
receivable amount and estimated
fair value and residual values
related to the calculation of the
finance lease receivable
Dr. Retained earnings 1,432,665
Dr. Interest earned 160,879
Cr. Other income (contingent (128,050)
rent)
Cr. Finance lease receivable (1,465,494)
Unpaid debt principal of $177,528
was recorded as accounts payable
instead of current debt payable
Accounts payable 177,528
Current portion of long-term debt (177,528)
Total unadjusted differences 32,829 (1,465,494) nil 1,432,6651




2010

Statement of

Balance Sheet

Operations
Description Over Assets Liabilities Equity over
(under) | (over) under | over (under) (under)
Stated stated stated stated
$ $ $ $
Differences in calculation of net
receivable amount and estimated
fair value and residual values
related to the calculation of the
finance lease receivable
Dr. Retained earnings 1,373,101
Dr. Interest earned 156,994
Cr. Other income (contingent (97,520)
rent)
Cr. Finance lease receivable (1,432,665)
Reclassification of TTC
Management Fee Revenue
currently netted against rent
expense
Revenue 118,284
Operating expenses (118,284)
Total unadjusted differences 59,474 (1,432,665) nil 1,373,191




Appendix D — Summary of Adjusted Misstatements

2011
Comprehensive Statement of financial position
income
Description Over Assets Liabilities Equity
(under) | (over) under | over (under) | over (under)
stated stated stated stated
$ $ $ $
Differences in calculation of net
receivable amount and estimated
fair value and residual values
related to the calculation of the
finance lease receivable
2,392,902
Municipal property tax expense (2,392,902)
Other income
Management fees for work
performed for the TTC should be
classified as revenue and not
netted in expenses
Operating expenses 126,497
Parking revenue (126,497)
Total adjusted differences nil nil nil nil

2010

There are no adjusted misstatements in 2010.
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